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The Government Performance Lab (GPL)
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GPL Fellows
Provide hands-on technical 

assistance

Publications 
Spread ideas through policy 

briefs and tools 

National Network
Convene state and city 

innovators 

Technical Experts
Offer expert guidance on 

complex challenges 

Over 100 projects with 
72 jurisdictions across 
32 states

Procurement systems
Criminal justice
Child welfare
Homelessness & behavioral health
Workforce development



POLL:
How much do you know 
about your procurement 
operations?
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Many procurement departments don’t know 
how their operations are functioning

Procurement staff are unable to answer key 
questions like
• How many solicitations are run?
• How long does a solicitation take, on average?
• How many responses do solicitations receive?
• Are solicitations resulting in the best possible/

best value contracts?
• Are contracts achieving their intended impact?
• Are contracts supporting the local economy?
• Are all types of suppliers able to do business 

with your entity?
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Operations are 
reactive, inefficient, 
bureaucratic, and 
make it unclear 
how to improve. 



Data can be the key to more effective procurement

Using data in your procurement operation is the first step to:

• Facilitating proactive decision-making

• Improving process efficiency

• Maximizing the impact and value of contracts

• Advancing economic development goals
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Lessons from our work
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Improving resident experience with public 
services and making procurement a 

priority in Memphis, TN

Renovating procurement to work for 
City staff, suppliers, and residents in 

Long Beach, CA



Procurement Meets Data
Memphis, Tennessee
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Memphis faced common procurement 
problems
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Treated as a back-office, 
administrative function

Focused more on 
process compliance than 

outcomes

Unable to anticipate 
upcoming work or 

distinguish between high 
and low priority contracts



Memphis analyzed procurement data to 
improve operations and outcomes
Approach

• Developed a dashboard to streamline procurement
processes and prioritize contract performance

• Reviewed procurement data and priority
procurements monthly with City leadership

• Met with leaders from City divisions with highest
contracting volume to identify and plan for
upcoming high priority procurements
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Memphis leveraged data momentum to 
improve and elevate procurement
Opportunities

• New Chief Procurement Officer
o Invested in addressing process challenges and turning

procurement into a strategic function

• Data-driven management practices among senior
leadership

o Mayor’s monthly Performance Review Meeting provided forum for
cross-departmental collaboration and data-informed decision-
making

o Office of Performance Management supported analysis of
procurement data
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Procurement data revealed low 
procurement competition in Memphis

20%
RFQs that were 
re-releases of 
earlier RFQs 
that received no 
responses
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Low competition persisted 
across supplier target markets

60%
RFQs that 
received zero or 
one response
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Purchasing Agent, City of Long Beach
Michelle Wilson

Procurement Meets Data
Long Beach, California



Long Beach partnered with GPL to launch an 
Extreme Procurement Makeover

• A top-to-bottom renovation of procurement policies, processes, and practices.
• Make procurement work better for…

• City staff, through more efficient processes; less time required for 
unnecessary administrative tasks; more time for strategic activities.

• The supplier community, by increasing equitable access to business 
opportunities.

• Residents, by enabling better and more equitable outcomes from 
contracted programs, services, and goods.
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To start, we defined what an ideal procurement 
system would look like
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Results-Driven. Procurement and contracting practices are used to enhance the impact of City programs.

Best Value. Goods and services are procured based on price and quality.

Competitive. Encourage a large and open pool of suppliers, where everyone who wants an opportunity has an opportunity to 
be successful in the procurement process.

Equitable. Continuously engage a diverse set of suppliers, and apply an equity lens to procurement policies and practices.

Efficient. Implement policies, remove barriers, and streamline processes to ensure actions are meaningful and time, effort, and
money are not wasted.

Fair. Decision-making and actions are always unbiased and without preferential treatment, in line with the City’s code of ethics.

Transparent. Information on the public procurement process is available to the public at large to promote trust and accountability.

Service. City departments are supported to procure the goods and services required to meet the needs of the Long Beach
community and taxpayers.



We set goals to hold ourselves 
accountable for achieving this vision
OUR APPROACH

Competitive
% solicitations with >3 responses.

Efficient
Average cycle time for solicitations.

Best Value
% procurements resulting in high 
quality goods and services, at 
competitive prices.

• Data can help, if used for action.
• Keep it simple. One metric

per value.

• Where possible, prioritize:
• Output over process
• Objective over subjective
• Practicality over perfection

• We can build the practices to
create data for important metrics,
if needed.
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EXAMPLE METRICS



…with clear targets to aim for 

OUR APPROACH

Competitive
85% solicitations with >3 responses.

Efficient
<6 month average cycle time for 
solicitations.

Best Value
85% procurements resulting in high 
quality goods and services, at 
competitive prices.

• Balance ambition with what’s
attainable

• Where available, use:
• Baselines
• Industry norms
• Good old fashioned

common sense
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EXAMPLE TARGETS



We’ve just begun using this data 
to improve our operations

3 months
Average time to 
evaluate proposals
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By regularly interrogating our data, we can 
continue making progress
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Quarterly Review 
Questions:
1. Are we on track to

meet our goal this year
(<6 month average
cycle time)?

2. Are any stages
delayed?

3. Are Departments
consistently delayed?

4. Which solicitations
were delayed?

5. For all delays, what
was the reason? What
can be done
differently?

3-
4

1-2



We have formalized our goals to elevate the role 
of procurement in Long Beach
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MODEL PROCUREMENT PLAN | CITY OF LONG BEACH



Tips for introducing data to 
your procurement operation
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Know your objective
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KEY QUESTIONS:
Why are you using data? 
• Problem to solve
• Goal to achieve

What will you do with it?



To improve... …consider measuring:
Process 
efficiency

• Cycle times by stage
• % of solicitations that do not result in a contract

Competition
• average/median # of  submitted offers per solicitation
• % of solicitations getting more than one offer
• # new suppliers that respond each year

Equity in 
contracting

• % of small, local, and diverse businesses by stage
• % contracted spend to small, local, or diverse businesses

Internal 
stakeholder 
engagement

• % of staff reporting procurement process is quick, smooth
and efficient

• # of staff successfully trained

Engagement 
with the supplier 
community

• % of offerors rating the procurement process as 
efficient, inviting and transparent

• % of suppliers that would recommend working with the 
entity

Select metrics aligned with your objectives
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TIPS:

Start small, with a few 
priority metrics.

Pick metrics that are 
actionable, and that 
you’ll be able to track.

Dig in and do sub-
analysis:
• Solicitation type
• Department
• Supplier group
• Etc.



Find inspiration internally and from 
other entities
• Don’t just collect data—use it!
• Data is objective and persuasive. It makes difficult operational

changes easier.
• It’s ok if your data isn’t perfect. Start with what you have and build

on it.
• Efforts to elevate the role of procurement have been well received,

and can be strengthened with data.
• Utilize existing platforms, and non-procurement staff doing work

with data.
• Memphis and Long Beach are just two of many examples!
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Contact Information
Want help introducing data to you operation? Reach out! 
The Government Performance Lab is offering pro bono 
opportunities for technical assistance. 

Danielle Kavanagh-Smith, PhD
Project Leader
Government Performance Lab | Harvard Kennedy School
danielle_kavanagh-smith@hks.harvard.edu

Michelle Wilson
Purchasing Agent
City of Long Beach
michelle.wilson@longbeach.gov

Rebecca Graffy
Project Leader
Government Performance Lab | Harvard Kennedy School
rgraffy@hks.harvard.edu
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